

Be it enacted by the Legislature of the State of Minnesota:

Section 1. **McLeod county; commissioners' salaries.** The board of county commissioners of McLeod county may set the annual salary of each county commissioner at a sum not to exceed \$2,500, which sum shall be paid in equal monthly installments. These salaries shall be in addition to such compensation as is otherwise provided by law.

Sec. 2. The salary as provided in section 1 shall constitute a base salary and the board of county commissioners may adjust such salary on the basis of the cost of living index as provided in Minnesota Statutes, Section 375.43.

Sec. 3. This act is effective upon its approval by a majority of the members of the board of county commissioners of McLeod county, and upon compliance with Minnesota Statutes, Section 645.021.

Approved May 19, 1965.

CHAPTER 464—S. F. No. 1252

An act relating to taxes on and measured by net income and providing for the collection thereof; amending Minnesota Statutes 1961, Sections 290.48, Subdivision 2; and 290.92, Subdivision 6, as amended.

Be it enacted by the Legislature of the State of Minnesota:

Section 1. Minnesota Statutes, 1961, Section 290.48, Subdivision 2, is amended to read:

Subd. 2. **Income tax; collection; levy and sale.** If a tax imposed by this chapter, or any portion of such tax, is not paid within 30 days after it is required to be paid thereunder, the commissioner shall issue his warrant to the sheriff of any county of the state commanding him to levy upon and sell the real and personal property *of the taxpayer and to levy upon the rights to property* of the taxpayer within the county, and to return such warrant to the commissioner and pay to him the money collected by virtue thereof by a time to be therein specified, not less than 60 days from the date of the warrant. The sheriff shall proceed thereunder to levy upon and seize any property of the taxpayer *and to levy upon the rights to property of the taxpayer* within his county, except the homestead and household goods of the taxpayer; *and property*

Changes or additions indicated by italics, deletions by ~~strikeout~~.

of the taxpayer not liable to attachment, garnishment, or sale on any final process issued from any court under the provisions of Minnesota Statutes 1961, Section 550.37, and acts amendatory thereof, and shall sell so much thereof as is required to satisfy such taxes, interest, and penalties, together with his costs; but such sales shall, as to their manner, be governed by the laws applicable to sales of like property on execution issued against property upon a judgment of a court of record. The proceeds of such sales, less the sheriff's costs, shall be turned over to the commissioner, who shall retain such part thereof as is required to satisfy the tax, interest, penalties, and costs, and pay over any balance to the taxpayer. The commissioner shall not proceed under this subdivision until the expiration of 30 days after mailing to the taxpayer, at his last known address, a written notice of the amount of taxes, interest, and penalties due from the taxpayer and demand for their payment. Any action taken by the commissioner pursuant to this subdivision shall not constitute an election by the state to pursue a remedy to the exclusion of any other remedy provided for in this act.

Sec. 2. Minnesota Statutes 1961, Section 290.92, Subdivision 6, as amended by Laws 1963, Chapter 666, Section 2, is amended to read:

Subd. 6. **Employer to furnish information.** (1) Every employer required to deduct and withhold tax under subdivision 2 or subdivision 3 shall (a) for the period beginning October 1, 1961 and ending December 31, 1961, file with the commissioner of taxation, on or before January 31, 1962, and pay over the tax required to be withheld under subdivision 2 and subdivision 3, and for each quarterly period thereafter, on or before the last day of the month following the close of each quarterly period make and file with the commissioner a return and pay over to him the tax required to be withheld under subdivision 2 or subdivision 3, except that, if during any calendar month, other than the last month of the calendar quarter, the aggregate amount of the tax withheld under subdivision 2 or subdivision 3 exceeds \$25, such employer shall deposit such aggregate amount within 15 days after the close of such calendar month with the commissioner of taxation. However, any such return may be filed on or before the tenth day of the second calendar month following such period if such return is accompanied by depository receipts showing timely deposits in full payment of such taxes due for such period. For the purpose of the preceding sentence, a deposit which is not required to be made within such return period, may be made on or before the last day of the first calendar month following the close of such period. The commissioner shall upon receipt of such deposit issue to the

Changes or additions indicated by *italics*, deletions by ~~strikeout~~.

employer a depository receipt in duplicate evidencing such deposit. Every employer making monthly deposits pursuant to this subdivision shall attach to his return for the period with respect to which such deposits are made, depository receipts evidencing deposits made for such period and shall pay to the commissioner of taxation the balance, if any, of the taxes due for such period. If the aggregate amount of the taxes deposited as shown on the depository receipt or receipts attached to such return is in excess of the taxes shown on such return, a credit or refund may be obtained in accordance with regulations to be prescribed by the commissioner of taxation.

Such return shall be in such form and contain such information as the commissioner may by regulations prescribe. The commissioner may grant a reasonable extension of time for making such return or deposit and paying such tax, but no such extension shall be granted for more than six months.

(2) If less than the correct amount of such tax is paid to the commissioner, proper adjustments, with respect to both the tax and the amount to be deducted, shall be made, without interest, in such manner and at such times as the commissioner may by regulations prescribe. If such underpayment cannot be so adjusted the amount of the underpayment shall be assessed and collected in such manner and at such times as the commissioner may by regulations prescribe.

(3) If any employer fails to make and file any return required by paragraph (1) at the time prescribed therefor, or makes and files a false or fraudulent return, the commissioner shall make for him a return from his own knowledge and from such information as he can obtain through testimony, or otherwise, and assess a tax on the basis thereof. The amount of tax shown thereon shall be paid to the commissioner at such times as the commissioner may by regulations prescribe. Any such return or assessment so made by the commissioner shall be prima facie correct and valid, and the employer shall have the burden of establishing its incorrectness or invalidity in any action or proceeding in respect thereto.

(4) If the commissioner, in any case, has reason to believe that the collection of the tax provided for in paragraph (1) of this subdivision, and any added penalties and interest, if any, will be jeopardized by delay, he may immediately assess such tax, whether or not the time otherwise prescribed by law for making and filing the return and paying such tax has expired.

(5) Any assessment under this subdivision shall be made by

Changes or additions indicated by italics, deletions by ~~strikeout~~.

recording the liability of the employer in the office of the commissioner in accordance with regulations prescribed by the commissioner. Upon request of the employer, the commissioner shall furnish the employer a copy of the record of assessment.

(6) Any assessment of tax under this subdivision shall be made within three and one-half years after the due date of the return required by paragraph (1), or the date the return was filed, whichever is later; except that in the case of a false or fraudulent return or failure to file a return, the tax may be assessed at any time.

(7) (a) Except as provided in (b) of this paragraph, every employer who fails to pay to or deposit with the commissioner any sum or sums required by this section to be deducted, withheld and paid, shall be personally and individually liable to the state of Minnesota for such sum or sums (and any added penalties and interest); and any sum or sums deducted and withheld in accordance with the provisions of subdivision 2 or subdivision 3 shall be held to be a special fund in trust for the state of Minnesota.

(b) If the employer, in violation of the provision of this section, fails to deduct and withhold the tax under this section, and thereafter the taxes against which such tax may be credited are paid, the tax so required to be deducted and withheld shall not be collected from the employer; but this shall in no case relieve the employer from liability for any penalties and interest otherwise applicable in respect of such failure to deduct and withhold.

(8) Upon the failure of any employer to pay to or deposit with the commissioner within the time provided by paragraphs (1), (2) or (3) of this subdivision any tax required to be withheld in accordance with the provisions of subdivision 2 or subdivision 3, or if the commissioner has assessed a tax pursuant to paragraph (4), such tax shall become immediately due and payable, and the commissioner may deliver to the attorney general a certified statement of the tax, penalties and interest due from such employer. The statement shall also give the address of the employer owing such tax, the period for which the tax is due, the date of the delinquency, and such other information as may be required by the attorney general. It shall be the duty of the attorney general to institute legal action in the name of the state to recover the amount of such tax, penalties, interest and costs. The commissioner's certified statement to the attorney general shall for all purposes and in all courts be prima facie evidence of the facts therein stated and that the amount shown therein is due from the employer named in the statement. In event action is instituted as herein

Changes or additions indicated by *italics*, deletions by ~~strikeout~~.

provided, the court shall, upon application of the attorney general, appoint a receiver of the property and business of the delinquent employer for the purpose of impounding the same as security for any judgment which has been or may be recovered. Any such action shall be brought within four years and three months after the due date of the return or deposit required by paragraph (1), or the date the return was filed, or deposit made whichever is later; except that in the case of failure to make and file such return or if such return is false or fraudulent, or such deposit is not made such action may be brought at any time.

(9) The tax required to be withheld under subdivision 2 or subdivision 3 or paid to, or deposited with the commissioner under subdivision 6, together with penalties, interest and costs, shall become a lien upon all of the real property of the employer within this state, except his homestead, from and after the filing by the commissioner of a notice of such lien in the offices of the register of deeds of the county in which such real property is situated.

(10) Either party to an action for the recovery of any tax, interest or penalties under this subdivision may remove the judgment to the supreme court by appeal, as provided for appeals in civil cases.

(11) No suit shall lie to enjoin the assessment or collection of any tax imposed by this section, or the interest and penalties added thereto.

(12) When any tax is due and payable as provided in paragraph (8) the commissioner may issue his warrant to the sheriff of any county of the state commanding him to levy upon and sell the real and personal property *of the employer and to levy upon the rights to property* of the employer within the county and to return such warrant to the commissioner and pay to him the money collected by virtue thereof by a time to be therein specified, not less than 60 days from the date of the warrant. The sheriff shall proceed thereunder to levy upon and seize any property of the employer *and to levy upon the rights to property of the employer* within his county, except the homestead and household goods of the employer; *and property of the employer not liable to attachment, garnishment, or sale on any final process issued from any court under the provisions of Minnesota Statutes 1961, Section 550.37, and acts amendatory thereof*, and shall sell so much thereof as is required to satisfy such taxes, interest, and penalties, together with his costs; but such sales shall, as to their manner, be governed by the laws applicable to sales of like property on execution issued against property upon a judgment of a court of record. The proceeds

Changes or additions indicated by italics, deletions by ~~strikeout~~.

of such sales, less the sheriff's costs, shall be turned over to the commissioner, who shall retain such part thereof as is required to satisfy the tax, interest, penalties and costs, and pay over any balance to the taxpayer. Any action taken by the commissioner pursuant to this subdivision shall not constitute an election by the state to pursue a remedy to the exclusion of any other remedy providing for the collection of taxes required to be withheld by employers.

Approved May 19, 1965.

CHAPTER 465—S. F. No. 1322

[Not Coded]

An act relating to police pensions in the city of Saint Paul; amending Laws 1955, Chapter 151, Section 7, as amended.

Be it enacted by the Legislature of the State of Minnesota:

Section 1. Laws 1955, Chapter 151, Section 7, as amended by Laws 1963, Chapter 271, Section 4 is amended to read:

Sec. 7. **St. Paul, city of; police pensions.** In addition to the rate allowed to be expended for cost of government by the Charter of the City, the City shall levy a tax of ~~1 8/10~~ *two* mills at the times and in the manner it levies other taxes, and the proceeds of this tax shall be paid into the policemen's pension fund.

Sec. 2. *This act shall become effective only after its approval by a majority of the governing body of the city of Saint Paul, and upon compliance with the provisions of Minnesota Statutes, Section 645.021.*

Approved May 19, 1965.

CHAPTER 466—S. F. No. 1610

[Not Coded]

An act relating to the county of Hennepin; authorizing the governing body of the county to fix the time and manner of paying salaries of officers and employees payable in whole or in part from county funds.

Changes or additions indicated by italics, deletions by ~~strikeout~~.